GITY OF SYDNEY ©

2 November 2022

At 5.00 pm

Local Planning Panel




Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Agenda

1. Disclosures of Interest
2. Confirmation of Minutes

3. Development Application: 807 South Dowling Street, Waterloo - D/2021/1512



GITY OF SYDNEY &

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to
Members of the Local Planning Panel (LPP) about items on a meeting agenda.

Webcast

In accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and the City of Sydney
Local Planning Panel Operational Procedures, LPP meetings are audio visually recorded and
webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

Members of the public attending a LPP meeting may have their image, voice and personal
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived.

Consent

By attending a LPP meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and
personal information.

Disclaimer

Statements made by individuals at a LPP meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City/LPP. To
be clear, unless set out in a resolution, the City/LPP does not endorse or support such
statements.

The City/LPP does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals
during LPP meetings that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive
comments. Such statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of
legal proceedings and potential liability, for which the City/LPP takes no responsibility.

To enable the LPP to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available,
we encourage people interested in speaking at meetings to:

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing
secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au before 12.00 noon on the day of the meeting.

2. Check the recommendation in the LPP report before speaking, as it may address your
concerns so that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation.

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker and prepare your
presentation to cover your major points within that time.

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information
that the LPP may not already know.

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nhominate
three representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are
representing.

At the start of each LPP meeting, the Chair may re-order agenda items so that those items with
speakers can be dealt with first.

LPP reports are on line at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au



http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/

Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Item 1.

Disclosures of Interest

In accordance with section 4.9 of the Code of Conduct for Local Planning Panel Members,
all Panel members are required to sign a declaration of interest in relation to each matter on
the agenda.

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 15 of Schedule 4B of the Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979, members of the Local Planning Panel are required to disclose
pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.

Panel members are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on
the agenda for this meeting of the Local Planning Panel.

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed.



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Item 2.

Confirmation of Minutes

Minutes of the following meeting of the Local Planning Panel, which have been endorsed by
the Chair of that meeting, are submitted for noting:

Meeting of 12 October 2022



Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

Item 3.

Development Application: 807 South Dowling Street, Waterloo - D/2021/1512

File No.: D/2021/1512

Summary

Date of Submission:

Applicant/Owner:

Planning Consultant:

Cost of Works:

Zoning:

Proposal Summary:

29 December 2021, with additional information submitted
on 7 September 2022.

Karimbla Properties (No. 25) Pty Limited
Avenue Town Planning
$0

The site is located in the B4 Mixed Use zone. The
proposed development is defined as residential flat
building and is permissible with consent in the zone.

Approval is sought for the conversion of existing serviced
apartments to their previously approved use as residential
apartments pursuant to Chapter 3, Part 7 of the State
Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) 2021.

The application is referred to the Local Planning Panel for
determination as the proposal is subject to State
Environmental Planning Policy No. 65 - Design Quality of
Residential Apartment Development and the existing
building is greater than 4 storeys in height.

The following additional information has been provided to
address issues raised by Council's officers:

. written statement referring to the amendment to the
SEPP (Transport and Infrastructure) 2021 made on
12 August 2022 to remove the noise and vibration
consideration for developments pursuant to Chapter
3, Part 7 of the SEPP (Housing) 2021,

. updated floor plans to nominate the use of existing
back-of-house facilities on Level 2 as bulky waste
storage, and an updated waste management plan to
outline the residential waste management procedure;



Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

Summary Recommendation:

Development Controls:

Attachments:

. confirmation of the apartment mix, including the
number of dual-key apartments that were converted
from three-bedroom apartments;

. number of car parking spaces, car wash bays, and
bicycle parking; and

o gross floor area calculation plan to confirm that the
proposal will not alter the site's existing FSR.

The application was notified and advertised for 21 days
between 18 January and 9 February 2022. As a result, 1
submission in support and 1 submission in objection were
received. All comments made in the submissions are
addressed within this report.

Overall, the proposal satisfies the provisions of Chapter 3,
Part 7 of the SEPP (Housing) 2021 and maintains the level
of residential amenity for the apartments as originally

approved under development consent D/2003/927 (as
amended).

The development application is recommended for
approval, subject to conditions.

(i)  State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) 2021

(i)  State Environmental Planning Policy (Transport and
Infrastructure) 2021

(i)  State Environmental Planning Policy (Resilience and
Hazards) 2021

(iv) State Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design
Quality of Residential Apartment Development

(v) State Environmental Planning Policy (Building
Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

(viy Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012
(vii) Sydney Development Control Plan 2012
(viii) City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015

(ix) City of Sydney Affordable Housing Program

A. Recommended Conditions of Consent

B. Selected Drawings



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Recommendation

It is resolved that consent be granted to Development Application No. D/2021/1512 subject
to the conditions set out in Attachment A to the subject report.

Reasons for Recommendation

The application is recommended for approval for the following reasons:

(A) The development complies with the objectives of the B4 Mixed Use zone pursuant to
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.

(B) The development complies with the principles of the State Environmental Planning
Policy (Housing) 2021 and the provisions of Chapter 3, Part 7 of the policy.

(C) The development is generally consistent with the design quality principles of State
Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design Quality of Residential Apartments.

(D) The development is generally consistent with the objectives of Sydney Local
Environmental Plan 2012 and Sydney Development Control Plan 2012.



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Background

The Site and Surrounding Development

1.

The site has a legal description of Lot 2 in DP1094580, commonly known as 807
South Dowling Street, Waterloo. It is irregular in shape with an area of approximately
27,390m?2. It has a primary street frontage to South Dowling Street and secondary
street frontages to Crescent Street (north) and Danks Street (south).

The site was redeveloped together with the adjoining property to the west, being 28
Danks Street, under development consent D/2003/927. Collectively, the two sites form
the Stage 6 redevelopment of the former ACI site.

The two sites contain four buildings sited above a shared basement and ground floor
parking, loading and servicing area. The shared basement and servicing area is
accessed via a double-width single driveway off Danks Street (Figure 3). The two sites
also share a communal podium, nested between the buildings.

The two sites have been subdivided. To allow access to the shared facilities, 29
easements have been registered in DP1094580. These include reciprocal easements
for access, fire egress, services, fire services, and the access and use of the
communal podium; and easements for the subject site to access the loading bay, and
recycling bin storage area located on 28 Danks Street.

The adjoining 28 Danks Street accommodates Buildings A and B, being two 7-10
storey residential flat buildings. The two buildings comprise 82 strata-subdivided
apartments.

The subject site, on the other hand, accommodates Buildings C and D, being two 7-15
storey buildings. The two buildings are currently used as serviced apartments, known
as 'Meriton Suites Waterloo'. However, they were originally designed as residential flat
buildings, with Small Office Home Office (SOHO) style apartments and a retail tenancy
on the ground floor.

The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of land uses, primarily being
residential in nature, including the multi-storey mixed use buildings known as Moore
Park Gardens to the north, and other mixed-use buildings to the west and south.

The site is not a heritage item nor located within a heritage conservation area. The site
is located within the Green Square locality and is not identified as being flood-affected.

A site visit was carried out on 20 January 2022. Photos of the site and surrounds are
provided below:



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

MERITON

=/ M

Figure 2: Site (Building D) viewed from the corner of Danks and South Dowling Streets



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Figure 3: Site (BuiIdinQ D) viewed from Danks Street, showing entrance to the common basement
shared with the adjoining apartment buildings to the west

B ] N 12 -
Figure 4: Site (Building C) viewed from Crescent Street



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

— b >

Fiuré 5: View of groun ro'oSOHO apartments fronting South Dowling Street

G~

History Relevant to the Development Application
Development Applications

On 8 September 1999, South Sydney Council adopted a masterplan for the former ACI
site. The adopted masterplan established a framework of land uses and urban design
elements for the development of the former ACI site. The subject site forms part of
Stage 6 of the masterplan. The 10 stages of the masterplan are shown in Figure 6
below, with the subject Stage 6 outlined in red.

On 29 July 2004, deferred commencement consent D/2003/927 was granted by the
Central Sydney Planning Committee for the construction of 4 buildings containing 242
residential units, 70m2 of retail space, and associated 255 parking spaces. The
deferred commencement condition relating to the detailed design of the building
facades was satisfied on 22 September 2004 and the consent was activated. The four
buildings, being Buildings A, B, C and D are shown in Figure 6, while the approved
Level 3 plan is provided in Figure 7, showing the shared loading bay and recycling bin
storage area.



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

o |

AR AT AVAVAS
RISl QOO

AN\

wv-u-_v-‘:‘

in

A

(“"-"———"—'""'—'.'?f.

~ia} {a) la

| e S AT AN L g S PN AY S S STy
§ = § o T - - . o ; N~
3 e N ! e : ! ! ! 3
! ==
¢ o
J] Ve
I e .
- =
4
Y -
b i o
4.4
0
iR
=SS .
—}— 23
| epi
' B
B L
| i ““{
R iy s S SF a4 3
1T PART i 4 4 < .
SUBMITTED @ Sﬁ 5 /@ 7
RMATION | Sl & - J
NANKQ QTRERET DANKS TREET

Figure 7: Level 3 plan for Buildings A-D



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

10.

11.

The development consent D/2003/927 has been subsequently modified. The following
modification applications are relevant to the subject application:

. D/2003/927/G — was approved on 29 August 2005 to convert the studies of nine
apartments into bedrooms, deletion of a roof top communal open space, and
modify the retail tenancy floor space. As amended, the consent allows 226
residential units, 15 home/office (SOHO) units, 71m? retail floor space, and 255
parking spaces.

o D/2003/927/J — was approved on 14 December 2005 for physical works related
to serviced apartments in Buildings C and D such as linen room, reception desk,
staff room [the use is separately approved under D/2005/1989] and the
conversion of 26 three-bedroom apartments in Buildings C and D into dual key
apartments.

It is noted that Condition 1d was added to prevent the strata subdivision of the 26
dual key apartments, requiring each of the former three-bedroom apartments to
remain as a single strata lot; and Condition 1e was added to require the partial
surrender of D/2003/927 for the use of Buildings C and D as permanent
residential apartment.

On 12 January 2006, deferred commencement consent D/2005/1989 was granted for
the use of residential apartments in Building C and D as serviced apartments. The
deferred commencement condition required the partial surrender of D/2003/927 for the
use of those apartments as permanent residential apartments. The deferred
commencement requirement was satisfied on 2 February 2006, and the consent was
subsequently activated.

NOTE: The consent included no physical works and does not affect Buildings A and B.

Additional Information

12.

Following an assessment of the proposed development by Council Officers, a request
for additional information was sent to the applicant on 9 March 2022. The following
were requested:

(a) updated acoustic report to demonstrate compliance with the noise and vibration
criteria stipulated by the State Environmental Planning Policy (Transport and
Infrastructure) 2021,

(b) updated waste management plan to outline the proposed management
procedure for the residential apartments;

(c) evidence to demonstrate how the proposed development is eligible for an
exemption for section 7.11 development contribution pursuant to Table 2,
Section 1.3 of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015 and an
exemption for affordable housing contribution pursuant to Section 2.2 of the City
of Sydney Affordable Housing Program;

(d) diagrams to identify the proposed apartment mix and the number of parking
spaces, car wash bays, and bicycle parking spaces;

(e) confirm the new uses for the existing back-of-house facilities associated with the
service apartments; and



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

13.

(f) agross floor area calculation plan to confirm the FSR of the site.

The applicant responded to the request on 7 September 2022 and submitted the
following information:

(@) written statement referring to the amendment to the SEPP (Transport and
Infrastructure) 2021 made on 12 August 2022 to remove the noise and vibration
consideration for developments pursuant to Chapter 3, Part 7 of the SEPP
(Housing) 2021;

(b) updated floor plans to nominate the use of existing back-of-house facilities on
Level 2 as bulky waste storage, and an updated waste management plan to
outline the waste management procedure, utilising the existing loading bay and
recycling waste storage area located on the adjoining 28 Danks Street;

(c) confirmation of the apartment mix, including the number of dual-key apartments
that were converted from three-bedroom apartments;

(d) number of car parking spaces, car wash bays, and bicycle parking provided
within the subject site;

(e) agross floor area calculation plan to demonstrate that no changes to the site's
existing FSR as a result of the proposed change of use;

(f)  receipt demonstrating previous payment of s94 (now s7.11) development
contributions; and

(g) receipt demonstrating previous payment for affordable housing contributions and
a request for an exemption to be considered.

Proposed Development

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The application seeks consent for the change of use of Buildings C and D from
serviced apartments to residential apartments, as originally approved under
development consent D/2003/972 (as amended).

The two buildings currently contain 158 apartments, including 26 three-bedroom
apartments that have been approved as dual key apartments. Those dual key
apartments comprise three studios, 42 one-bedrooms, and seven two-bedrooms,
increasing the total number of apartments to 184.

Existing back-of-house facilities associated with the serviced apartments, being linen
store, office and house-keeper store, are proposed to be repurposed as bulky waste
storage area.

The buildings also contain a ground floor retail tenancy at the southeast corner. No
specific use is proposed for the tenancy. Thus, its fitout and use are subject to
separate development consent/s and a condition is recommended to restrict the hours
of operation to the typical hours for commercial premises under a complying
development certificate.

The application proposes no changes to the existing vehicular access off Danks

Street, and maintains the existing servicing, loading, and parking arrangements as
originally approved.

10



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Assessment

19. The proposed development has been assessed under Section 4.15 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

State Environmental Planning Policies

State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) 2021

20. The aim of SEPP (Housing) 2021 is to provide a consistent planning regime for the
provision of diverse housing types, especially in locations where it will make good use
of existing and planned infrastructure and services.

Chapter 3 Diverse Housing - Part 7 Conversion of certain serviced apartments

21. Chapter 3 Part 7 is applicable to the subject application as the existing buildings are
currently used for the purposes of serviced apartments under D/2005/1989 and have
previously been the subject of a development consent for the use as a residential flat
building under D/2003/927.

22. Section 116 enables the conversion of serviced apartments to residential flat buildings,
given 'residential flat buildings' are permitted on the subject site, which is zoned B4
Mixed Use.

23. In accordance with Section 115(2), the Apartment Design Guide is not to be taken into
consideration when determining the subject application.

State Environmental Planning Policy No 65 - Design Quality of Residential Flat
Development

24. The aim of SEPP 65 is to improve the design quality of residential apartment
development in New South Wales.

25.  When determining an application for a residential flat development of three or more
floors and containing four or more apartments, SEPP 65 requires the consent authority
take into consideration a number of matters relating to design quality, including the
design quality principles as set out in Schedule 1.

26. The applicant has submitted a design verification statement prepared by lan Lim (no.
8473) with the application, addressing the design quality principles set out in Schedule
1 of this SEPP. The statement is deemed to satisfy Clause 50(1A) of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.

27. An assessment of the proposal against the design quality principles is provided below:
(@) Principle 1: Context and Neighbourhood Character
The site was redeveloped as part of the wider redevelopment of the ACI site.
The existing building responds to its surrounding context and contributes to the
now established residential character of the area. The proposal will not modify

the existing buildings, hence maintaining that contribution to the surrounding
streetscape and character.

11



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

(f)

9

(h)

Principle 2: Built Form and Scale

The proposal will not modify the existing buildings' form and scale, which is
compatible with the neighbouring buildings, including the predominantly
residential developments to the north, west, and south.

Principle 3: Density

The proposal maintains the existing number and variety of apartment as
originally approved. It maintains the level of amenity approved by the original
development consent for the future residents and will not result in any additional
amenity impacts to neighbouring properties.

The density is appropriate in the local context, particularly in proximity to
established infrastructure, public transport, community and recreational facilities.

Principle 4: Sustainability

The apartments were designed to maximise access to natural light, and the
achievement of natural cross ventilation. Centralised waste management
facilities were also provided. These features are not altered by the proposal.

The site is located close to existing public transport and is well-serviced by the
existing dedicated cycleway that runs along Bourke Street to encourage the use
of alternative transport modes to private vehicles.

Principle 5: Landscape

A communal podium open space is provided between Buildings C and D that
accommodates landscaping and tree plantings. The proposal will maintain the
landscaping currently accommodated within the open space.

Principle 6: Amenity

The existing buildings were approved with an acceptable level of amenity. The
proposal will not diminish that level of amenity for the future residents of the
development and will not result in any additional amenity impacts to
neighbouring properties.

Principle 7: Safety

The proposal provides for passive surveillance of the three street frontages,
including the corners. The communal open spaces are easily accessible and
clearly defined. Appropriate security gate is provided to the street entrance to the
podium open space from Danks Street, and the open space is highly visible to
the apartments to optimise passive surveillance. The design is generally
consistent with the principles of Crime Prevention Through Environmental
Design.

Principle 8: Housing Diversity and Social Interaction
The proposal will provide an appropriate mix of dwelling types with varying sizes
to accommodate different demographics. Communal open spaces are designed

to accommodate active and passive uses, to provide amenity to the residents
and encourage social interaction.

12



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

28.

29.

()  Principle 9: Aesthetics

The proposal will not alter the existing design of Buildings C and D. The design is
of an acceptable standard and is compatible with existing neighbouring
developments and the desired character of the locality.

The development is acceptable when assessed against the SEPP including the above
stated principles.

It should be noted that Clause 6A(2) of the SEPP specifies that provisions of Sydney
Development Control Plan 2012 are of no effect regarding matters of visual privacy,
solar and daylight access, common circulation and spaces, apartment size and layout,
ceiling heights, private open space and balconies, natural ventilation, and storage.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Transport and Infrastructure) 2021

30.

The provisions of SEPP (Infrastructure) 2007 have been considered in the assessment
of the development application.

Section 2.119 — Development with frontage to classified road

31.

32.

33.

The application is subject to Section 2.119 of the SEPP as the site has a frontage to
South Dowling Street which is a classified road.

The proposed development satisfies the provisions of section 2.119 as access to the
site is not provided from the classified road and the safety, efficiency and ongoing
operation of the classified road will not be adversely affected by the development.

The application was referred to the Transport for NSW, who raised no objections and
did not recommend any conditions.

Section 2.120 — Impact of road noise or vibration on non-road development

34.

35.

36.

The application is subject to Section 2.120 of the SEPP as the proposed use, being
residential accommodation, is likely to be adversely affected by road noise or vibration
from the adjacent South Dowling Street.

Clause (3A), however, was added on 12 August 2022 to exclude the consideration of
the identified noise and vibration criteria of section 2.120 for developments pursuant to
Chapter 3, Part 7 of SEPP (Housing) 2021.

Compliance with the identified noise and vibration criteria of section 2.120 is therefore
not required.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Resilience and Hazards) 2021

37.

38.

Chapter 4 of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Resilience and Hazards) 2021
is to ensure that a change of land use will not increase the risk to health, particularly in
circumstances where a more sensitive land use is proposed.

The subject site was redeveloped circa 2004-2006 under development consent
D/2003/927 (as amended) as a residential flat building. The site was made suitable for
residential purposes and was subjected to a Site Audit Statement issued by an EPA
Accredited Site Auditor.

13



Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

39. This development application does not include any physical works to the existing
buildings, thus there will be no exposure created to any potential sub-surface

contaminants.

40. Council’s Health Unit has reviewed the history of the site and considers the site is

suitable for the proposed use.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Building Sustainability Index: BASIX) 2004

41. A BASIX Certificate has been submitted with the development application to
demonstrate that the existing building can satisfy BASIX requirements subject to
possible replacement of existing fixtures. A condition of consent is recommended
ensuring the measures detailed in the BASIX certificate are implemented.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012

42. An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions of the
Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Part 2 Permitted or prohibited development

Provision

Compliance

Comment

2.3 Zone objectives and Land | Yes

Use Table

The site is located in the B4 Mixed Use
zone. The proposed development is
defined as residential flat building and is
permissible with consent in the zone. The
proposal generally meets the objectives
of the zone.

Part 4 Principal development standards

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.3 Height of buildings Yes A maximum building height of 45m is
permitted. The proposal will not alter the
height of the existing buildings.

4.4 Floor space ratio Yes A maximum FSR of 3.75:1 is permitted.

The proposal, including the change of
use of existing back-of-house services
located on the ground floor, will not alter
the existing FSR for the site.

Part 7 Local provisions — general

Provision

Compliance

Comment

Division 1 Car parking ancillary to other development

7.5 Residential flat buildings,
dual occupancies and multi
dwelling housing

Acceptable

The proposal will not alter the existing
provision of car parking spaces.

While the existing 184 residential car
parking spaces exceeds the maximum

14




Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

affordable housing

Provision Compliance | Comment
137 permitted under section 7.5; section
7.1(3) clarifies that a reduction is not
required in an existing building.

7.7 Retail premises Yes The existing 2 retail parking spaces is
compliant with the maximum of 2 spaces
permitted under section 7.7.

Division 3 Affordable housing

7.13 Contribution for purpose of | Yes An affordable housing contribution is not

payable as an exemption in accordance
with Section 2.2 of City of Sydney

Affordable Housing Program is
considered acceptable.
See 'Financial Contributions' section

below for details.

Development Control Plans

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012

43.

An assessment of the proposed development against the relevant provisions within the

Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 is provided in the following sections.

Section 2 — Locality Statements
44,

The site is located within the Danks Street locality. The proposed development is in

keeping with the unique character and the design principles of the locality.

Section 3 — General Provisions

Provision Compliance | Comment

3.6 Ecologically Sustainable | Yes The proposal satisfies BASIX and

Development environmental requirements.

3.8 Subdivision, Strata | Yes A condition is recommended to require

Subdivision and Consolidation the dual key apartments to remain on a
single strata lot to allow them to be
converted back to three-bedroom
apartments in the future if desired. This
requirement is consistent with the
requirements of the original development
consent D/2003/927.

3.11 Transport and Parking Yes Existing easement allows the subject site

to access the loading bay located on the
portion of the basement below 28 Danks
Street. A condition is recommended to

15




Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

Provision Compliance | Comment
specify the maximum vehicle size to
service the site is 10.8m. This is
consistent with the original development
consent D/2003/927.
No changes are proposed to the existing
car parking allocation. Two (2) car wash
bays are also maintained.

3.14 Waste Yes The subject site will utilise the existing

loading area and recycling waste storage
area located at 28 Danks Street, which
access is secured by existing easements.

Existing back-of-house facilities
associated with the service apartments
will also be repurposed as bulky waste
storage area to comply with the City's
Guidelines for Waste Management in
New Development.

Conditions have been recommended in
Attachment A to ensure appropriate
waste management will occur in
accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Guidelines.

Section 4 — Development Types

4.2 Residential Flat, Commercial and Mixed Use Developments

dwelling mix

Provision Compliance | Comment

4.2.1 Building height Yes The proposal will not alter the existing

4.2.2 Building setbacks bu!ldlng envglqpe nor the floor to ceiling
heights as originally approved.

4.2.3.5 Landscaping Yes The existing landscaping, including the
landscaped area within the podium open
space, are not altered by this application.

4.2.3.12 Flexible housing and | Yes The existing buildings have been

approved with 158 apartments, including
26 dual key apartments.

Prior to the conversion of the 26 three-
bedrooms into dual key apartments, the
apartment mix of 12.6% studio, 31% one-
bedrooms, 49% two-bedrooms and
18.4% three-bedrooms is generally
consistent with the recommended ratio.

16




Local Planning Panel

2 November 2022

Provision

Compliance

Comment

The 26 dual key apartments provide as
an alternative 3 studios, 42 one-
bedrooms, and 7 two-bedrooms.

The mix of dwelling type is considered
appropriate to accommodate a diverse
population and achieve social diversity. In
particular, the dual key apartments
provide additional flexibility to enable
future changes in internal configurations
to cater for future needs.

The 26 dual key apartments are currently
contained within a single strata unit
according to the strata plan included in
Attachment B2. A condition is also
recommended  to reinforce  this
requirement.

4.2.6 Waste and recycling
Management

Yes

Conditions are recommended to ensure
compliance with the relevant provisions
of the City of Sydney Guidelines for
Waste Management in New
Development.

4.2.8 Letterboxes

Yes

A condition is recommended to confirm
the design and installation of letterboxes
prior to the occupation of the buildings.

Section 5 — Specific Areas

5.2 Green Square

Provision

Compliance

Comment

5.2.1 Green Square Urban
Strategy

5.2.2 Objectives for Green
Square

Yes

The subject site was redeveloped in
accordance with a master plan for the
former ACI site. The residential units
originally approved within the existing
building contributes to a residential
environment that is supported by a 'local
centre' along Dank Street, community
facilities, public parks and public streets.

The proposed change of use will maintain
the site's contribution to the desired
character of the area and provide a mix of
housing choices to support a diverse
community.

17




Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Consultation

Internal Referrals

45,

The application was discussed with Council’s Building Services Unit; Environmental
Health Unit; Heritage and Urban Design Unit; Surveyors; Transport and Access Unit;
and the Waste Management Unit who advised that the proposal is acceptable subject
to conditions. Where appropriate, these conditions are included in the Notice of
Determination.

Advertising and Notification

46.

47.

48.

In accordance with the City of Sydney Community Participation Plan 2019, the
proposed development was notified and advertised for a period of 21 days between 18
January 2022 and 9 February 2022. A total of 463 properties were notified and a total
of 2 submissions were received, including one submission in support and one
objection.

The submission in support made the following comments:

(@) Issue: The change from serviced apartments to residential apartments will
eliminate the current amenity issues, such as loud music at night and littering.

Response: Noted.
The objection raised the following issue:

(@) Issue: Sufficient visitor car parking spaces should be provided to avoid visitors
using the car parking spaces in the common basement.

Response: According to the approved strata plan included in Attachment B2, no
visitor car parking spaces were previously approved in the portion of the
basement below the subject site and that all existing car parking spaces are
allocated to a strata unit. Notwithstanding, the subject site is well serviced by
public transport and the existing cycleway network as alternative transport
modes. Nineteen (19) visitor bicycle parking spaces are also provided in the
portion of the basement below the subject site.

Financial Contributions

Contribution under Section 7.11 of the EP&A Act 1979

49.

50.

51.

The development is not subject to a Section 7.11 development contribution under the
provisions of the City of Sydney Development Contributions Plan 2015, as a
development contribution has previously been charged and paid under a predecessor
plan, being the Sydney City Council Section 94 Contributions Plan 2003.

The contribution amount was calculated on the basis that the buildings would be used
as residential apartments instead of serviced apartments. The receipt of payment
provided by the applicant has also been verified against Council's record.

This application is therefore excluded from the need to pay a contribution.

18



Local Planning Panel 2 November 2022

Affordable Housing Contribution under Section 7.13 of the Sydney LEP 2012

52. The proposed development is on land within the Green Square affordable housing
contribution area, and the proposed development involves the change of use of more
than 60sgm of existing floor area of a building. As such, the proposed development is
subject to an affordable housing contribution in accordance with Section 7.13(1)(b) of
Sydney LEP 2012.

53. However, the applicant has made a case for an exemption under Section 2.2 of the
City of Sydney Affordable Housing Program in that the estimated development cost of
construction for the proposed development is below $100,000.

54. The exemption is considered acceptable, and an affordable housing contribution is
therefore not payable.

Relevant Legislation

55. Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Conclusion

56. The proposed development is generally consistent with the zone objectives contained
in Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 and the provisions of Chapter 3 Part 7 of the
State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) 2021.

57. The proposed development is generally consistent with the design quality principles of
SEPP 65 and the residential amenity provisions of Section 4.2 of Sydney Development
Control Plan 2012.

58. The proposed development is consistent with the objectives and desired future

character for the Danks Street locality contained within the Sydney Development
Control Plan 2012.

ANDREW THOMAS

Executive Manager Planning and Development

Bryan Li, Senior Planner

19



Attachment A

Recommended Conditions of Consent

20




SCHEDULE 1
CONDITIONS OF CONSENT
PART A - GENERAL

(1) APPROVED DEVELOPMENT

(@) Development must be in accordance with Development Application No.
D/2021/1512 dated 29 December 2021 and the following drawings prepared

by MERITON:

Drawing Number | Drawing Name Date

DA0020 Q Floor Plan Level 1 Carparking Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0021 AJ Floor Plan Level 2 Carparking Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0022 AJ Floor Plan Level 3 Carparking Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0023 AG Floor Plan Level 4 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0024 AD Floor Plan Level 5 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0025 AA Floor Plan Level 6 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0026 AA Floor Plan Level 7 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0027 AC Floor Plan Level 8 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0028 AE Floor Plan Level 9 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0029 AD Floor Plan Level 10 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DAO0030 X Floor Plan Level 11 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DAO0031 AA Floor Plan Level 12 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0032 Z Floor Plan Level 13 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DAO033 W Floor Plan Level 14 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

DA0034 Q Floor Plan Level 15 Plan 05.08.22
(Stage C-D)

21



(2)

(3)

(4)

()

and as amended by the conditions of this consent.

(b) In the event of any inconsistency between the approved plans and
supplementary documentation, the plans will prevail.

Reason

To ensure all parties are aware of the approved plans and supporting
documentation that applies to the development.

USE - SEPARATE DA REQUIRED

No consent is granted or implied for the fit out or specific use of the retail tenancy.
A development consent or Complying Development Certificate (as appropriate) is
required to be obtained for the fitout and/or use of that tenancy prior to that fitout
and/or use commencing.

Reason

To require separate consent to be obtained for a use.

ALLOCATION FOR CAR WASH BAYS

If car wash bays are provided, spaces must not at any time be allocated, sold or
leased to an individual owner/occupier and must be strictly retained as common
property by the Owners Corporation for use by all tenants.

Reason

To ensure designated areas within the development are maintained as common
property.

ALLOCATION OF ACCESSIBLE CAR PARKING SPACES

For residential development, accessible car parking spaces for people with
mobility impairment are only to be allocated as visitor parking or to adaptable units.
Where allocated to adaptable units, the unit(s) and car spaces must be assigned
to the unit in any future strata subdivision of the building.

Reason

To ensure accessible vehicle parking spaces are allocated to adaptable units.

INTERCOM FOR VISITORS

Where a boom gate or barrier control is in place, the visitor spaces must be
accessible to visitors by the location of an intercom (or card controller system) at
the car park entry and at least 4m clear of the property boundary, wired to all units.
The intercom must comply with Australian Standard AS 1428.2-1992: Design for
access and mobility - Enhance and additional requirements - Building and facilities
Sections 22 and 23.

22



(6)

(7)

Reason

To maintain the orderly operation of vehicle parking areas.

PARKING ON COMMON PROPERTY AREAS

No part of the common property, apart from the visitor vehicle spaces which are
to be used only by visitors to the building, and service vehicle spaces which are to
be used only by service vehicles, is to be used for the parking or storage of
vehicles or boats. The strata subdivision of the building is to include an appropriate
documentary restriction pursuant to Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act 1919,
so burdening common property, with the Council being the authority to release,
vary or modify the restriction.

Reason

To ensure designated areas within the development are maintained as common
property.

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - RESIDENTIAL

(@) The Waste and Recycling Management Plan accompanying this
Development Application has not been approved by this consent.

(b) An updated Waste and Recycling Management Plan is to be submitted to
and approved by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area
Planning Manager prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued. The plan
must comply with the Council's Guidelines for Waste Management in New
Developments 2018.

(c) The updated Waste and Recycling Management Plan must include:

()  Marked up plans of the existing chute discharge rooms and details on
how the chute will be secured to ensure safety and confirmation that
residents would not have access to the chute room;

(i)  The path of travel between the bin storage areas/bulky waste storage
areas and the designated waste/recycling collection point;

(iif)  If consolidation of 240L bins into 1,100L bins are proposed, identify
space for a 240L bin lifter and confirmation that the owners will be
responsible for the costs of replacing nay red 1,100L bins where in-bin
compaction is used,;

(iv)  All nominated waste and recycling storage areas must be constructed
to meet the relevant conditions required by Council's Guidelines for
Waste Management in New Developments 2018.

(d) Prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued or the use commencing,
whichever is earlier, the Principal Certifier must obtain Council’s approval of
the waste and recycling management facilities provided in the development
and ensure arrangements are in place for domestic waste collection by
Council.

Reason

23



(8)

(9)

To ensure that waste and recycling is appropriately managed.

SIGNAGE TO INDICATE NON-PARTICIPATION IN RESIDENT PARKING
PERMIT SCHEME

Signs reading ‘all owners, tenants and occupiers of this building are advised that
they are not eligible to obtain an on-street resident parking permit from Council’
must be permanently displayed and located in prominent places such as at display
apartments and on all directory boards or notice boards, where they can easily be
observed and read by people entering the building. The signs must be erected
prior to an Occupation Certificate being issued and must be maintained in good
order at all times by the Owners of the building.

Reason

To ensure all owners, tenants and occupiers of the building are aware that they
are not eligible to obtain an on-street resident parking permit.

DUAL KEY APARTMENTS

All dual key apartments must remain on a single strata lot or otherwise not be
subdivided. A covenant is to be placed on the title of all dual key apartments and
the subject land prohibiting strata subdivision in any form of dual key apartments.
Evidence of the creation of the covenant is to be submitted prior to the issue of
an Occupation Certificate.

Reason

To ensure all dual key apartments remain on a single strata lot in any future strata
subdivision.

24



PART B — BEFORE THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

There are no conditions relevant to Part B.

PART C - BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF BUILDING WORK

There are no conditions relevant to Part C.

PART D — WHILE BUILDING WORK IS BEING CARRIED OUT

There are no conditions relevant to Part D.

25



PART E — BEFORE THE ISSUE OF AN OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

(10)

(11)

(12)

LETTERBOXES

(@) Details of the location and design of all letterboxes are to be submitted to
and approved by Council’s Area Coordinator Planning Assessments / Area
Planning Manager prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

(b) Letterboxes are to be discreetly located, must not obstruct and/or dominate
the public way and must be of a type and specification that minimises
opportunities for mail theft.

(c) Where possible, consideration should be given to locating letterboxes within
existing secure building lobbies.

(d) The letterboxes approved under subsection (a) above must be installed prior
to the issue of any Occupation Certificate.

Note: The applicant is strongly advised to contact Australia Post to discuss how
the letterboxes within the lobby will be accessed.

Reason

To ensure letterboxes are located in an appropriate location on the site to prevent
mail theft.

REMOVAL OF SIGN

All existing signage, including the top of building sign, relating to the use of the site
as a serviced apartment are to be removed prior to any Occupation Certificate
being issued.

Reason

To require the removal of existing signage that do not relate to the approved use
of the site.

BASIX

All commitments listed in each relevant BASIX Certificate for the development
must be fulfilled prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued.

Reason

To ensure BASIX commitments are fulfiled in accordance with the BASIX
certificate (prescribed condition under clause 97A(2) EP&A Regulation).

26



(13) RESTRICTION ON USE OF CAR SPACES

The following conditions apply to car parking:

(@)

(b)

(c)

The on-site car parking spaces, exclusive of service and visitor car spaces,
are not to be used other than by an occupant, tenant or resident of the
subject building.

Prior to any Occupation Certificate being issued, a documentary restrictive
covenant, is to be registered on the Title of the development site pursuant
to Section 88E of the Conveyancing Act 1919, to the effect of (a) above. The
covenant is to be created appurtenant to Council, at no cost to and to the
satisfaction of Council.

Any future strata subdivision of the site is to include a restriction on User
pursuant to section 39 of the Strata Titles (Freehold Development) Act,
1973, as amended, burdening all utility car parking allotments in the Strata
Plan and/or an appropriate restrictive covenant pursuant to section 88B of
the Conveyancing Act 1919 burdening all car parking part - lots in the strata
scheme.

Reason

To ensure the on-site car parking spaces are not to be used other than by an
occupant, tenant or resident of the building.

27



PART F — OCCUPATION AND ONGOING USE

(14)

(15)

(16)

17)

OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE TO BE SUBMITTED

An Occupation Certificate must be obtained from the Principal Certifier and a copy
submitted to Council prior to commencement of occupation or use of the whole or
any part of a new building, an altered portion of, or an extension to an existing
building.

Reason

To ensure the site is authorised for occupation.

ON SITE LOADING AREAS AND OPERATION

All loading and unloading operations associated with servicing the site must be
carried out within the confines of the site or within the dedicated loading area
located on the adjoining property, being 28 Danks Street Zetland, at all times and
must not obstruct other properties/units or the public way.

At all times the service vehicle docks, car parking spaces and access driveways
must be kept clear of goods and must not be used for storage purposes, including
garbage storage.

Reason

To maintain the orderly operation of vehicle parking areas and to ensure the public
domain is kept free from physical obstructions.

SERVICE VEHICLE SIZE LIMIT
The size of vehicles servicing the property must be a maximum length of 10.8m.
Reason

To maintain the orderly operation of vehicle parking and loading areas.

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT - RESIDENTIAL

(@) The collection of waste and recycling must only occur during the designated
zone collection times as outlined in the City’s Waste Policy — Local Approvals
Policy for Managing Waste in Public Places 2017.

(b) Garbage and recycling must not be placed on the street for collection.

Reason

To ensure that waste and recycling is appropriately managed.

28



(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

USE OF COMMON AREAS AND FACILITIES

The roof top communal space and podium communal space must be available for
the use all residents of the building and must be designated as common property
on any strata subdivision of the site, with no exclusive use rights.

Reason

To ensure designated areas within the residential development are maintained as
common property.

CAR WASH BAYS

(@) All car wash bays must have connections to water and sewer.

(b)  All car washing must be conducted in a wash bay which is roofed and
bunded to exclude rainwater, and which is graded to an internal drainage
point connected to sewer in accordance with the trade waste agreement
obtained from Sydney Water. Car wash runoff must not enter the stormwater
drainage system or give rise to water pollution.

Reason

To ensure the premises has access to water and sewer and to that runoff is
discharged appropriately.

CAR PARK VENTILATION

The car park must be ventilated in accordance with the Building Code of Australia
and, where necessary, Australian Standard AS1668, Parts 1 and 2. Ventilation
must be controlled by carbon monoxide monitoring sensors to ensure compliance
with occupant health requirements.

Reason

To ensure car park ventilation complies with relevant standards.

NUMBER OF ADULTS PER ROOM

(@) No more than two adult people shall permanently occupy any bedroom and
no bedroom shall contain more than two beds. This excludes children and
children’s beds, cots or bassinets.

(b) The total number of adults residing in one unit must not exceed twice the
number of approved bedrooms.

Reason

To prevent overcrowding.

29



(22) HOURS OF OPERATION — RETAIL TENANCY

The hours of operation of the food and drink tenancies are restricted to 7.00am
and 10.00pm Monday to Saturday, and 7.00am to 8.00pm Sunday or a public
holiday.

Reason

To ensure the premises operates within the approved hours of operation.

30



SCHEDULE 2
PRESCRIBED CONDITIONS

The prescribed conditions in accordance with Division 8A of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Regulation 2021 apply:

Clause 69 Compliance with Building Code of Australia and insurance requirements
under the Home Building Act 1989

Clause 70 Erection of signs

Clause 71 Notification of Home Building Act 1989 requirements

Clause 72 Conditions relating to entertainment venues

Clause 73 Conditions relating to maximum capacity signage

Clause 74 Conditions relating to shoring and adequacy of adjoining property

Refer to the NSW State legislation for full text of the clauses under Division 2 conditions of
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2021. This can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au

31



Attachment B1

Selected Drawings

32




L1117 1878719+ 4
8987 1626 210+ 3L
0002 A3upAS IS Wa) 828

J8MOL UOYIBH L1 ore]

Y 00oova
rv MAr
ovo SIN %0, TiHdY
133HS ¥3IN0D

oopaIeM 1S Buimog Yyinog
1S Ws0saI) JUD
O 1ONIO3Hd - 9 I9VIS - 1OV

peloid

o BuPa

fequeper o
Houy aEn wmenwo oy v zzEos0 v

wo  ha oSy aeq  new

INISNOY

INIWAOTIAIA 40 LNVHO 3HL U3LY S3S0duNd NOLLOMULSNOD
%04 G3UVaad ALLNENDISENS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3Y 38 AVA NOLLYYNIINGD GNY W04 OL SIONVHO HONIW

“NOILYING SLI K04
ONY SRIOM ANV 0 LV1S THL OL ¥ORSd 19310t JHL OL TTEVOMIEY.
38 AV SY NOILYINGID0Q SINYIINSNOO ¥3HLO ANV ¥O/ % TVONLOTR
TVOINVHOIN
B0V 3801 $301240°0L7
VL1910 SIHL 0 3511 3HL HLIM NOLLJZNNOD
NI ALIVET TVLININOISNOO 40 TYANGION] TRIELYTIO0 O3S
%04 TBVTI GTH 38 LT AL 0¥ NOLREN TIVHS IN3AS ON NI SWVT
a LN3SNC
LHLIM 1vd. ]

an

| va ¥04 3Anssi |

[ 0z [ [ 101 [ aviol]

[ 0z [ Guosy3d L) | 101 ] RZED)|

[oNDINVd D3] FivedIl | GWIAD | 3dAL|

| (d37) 31V ONIMYVL V13 |

[ €L | | ¥8L | qvi0l]

zL [ V 1S +a3ge,

vz zl z a3ge

o€ ! € Ils+d3ge

€02 viod] 0z8 | z8 azsz

S8 S0 i 1s+q3g}

562 S0 65 a3gi

velL S1INNOL ¥3d L 8l SUOLISIA gL 50 si a3 | - OHOS

8L IGEEED 81 TVIINIAISTY oz 70 S oianis
3T0AJIE DIY| 31w dod | SLINNIVIOL T3AT [ONDINVd DI 3lvadTd ALD 3dAL
[ (d20) s31vd 310A018 A+2 A9 | | (d37) s31vd ONDRIVL a+2 a9 |
[ 691 | qvi0l]
[ 6 [ IV10L] | z [ z [ 591 | wior-ans|
0 PRELE] 0 0 ze FREVER]

61 FRETED] [ 3 9 [RETER]

0 [RETEN] 0 0 6 [RETEN]

3104018 RELER] HSYMYVD VLY [ VIIN3QISTY RELER]

1NNOJ TJAJId ONILSIX3 d+D a1d

LNNOD ONIMYVd ONILSIX3 d+3 a9

(%0001 | 8l | wiol] [ %ros | 28 [ WwioL] [%000) ] 201 [ W104]
%S0 | ls+d3ge %00 0 1s+a3ss %0k [ Is+a3as
%L1 z a3ge %0'L L alss %0’ V alse
%9t € i1s+a3ge %0'L L i1s+a3ge, %0 [4 i1s+a3ge
%9 vy 28 a3ac %\ Sy 22 a3ge %E L€ 3 a3ge
%Z6 L I1s+a3gt %6 9 i1s+a3g} %801 1 ls+a3g}
%128 65 aza L %S €2 [ a3g ) %E Ve s¢ a3g )
%Z'8 Sl Q38 | - OHOS %6' v Q39 L - OHOS %80k L a3g L - OHOs
%LT S olanis %0 z olanis %6C € oian.s

% ALILNVND 3dAL % | ALILNVNO 3dAL % | ALILNVND 3dAL

[ XIN LINN @+ @718 | XIIN LINn @ aid | XIN LINN O @18 |

5'88z/L [ [ wio4]
Lyle VILNIAISTY S
8€L VILNIAIS3Y vi1
056 VILNIAISTY €11
17901 ADETER] [45
L¥60L VILNIAISTY 1l
6veel VILNIAISIY oLl
9z0z) VILNIAISTY 61
¥0z8L VILNIAISTY 81
55681 VILNIAISTY 2
vlzLl VILNIAISTY 91
959l WVILNIAISTY g1
z1.8) TVILNIAISTY [l
P9 VILNIAISTY €1
915zl VL3N + TVILNIAISTY 4l
1912 VILNIAISIY 11
;w) vayvy AdAL V4O RETER]
31NQ3HIS V4D |

v [ sIN ] SWVHOVIAV49]  0500vd
9} 00z:L (a-0 9be)g) 61 13ATT ¥E£00Va
M 00zZ:1 (a-0 °be1g) ¥1 13A3T £€00vQ
z 00Z:1 (a-0 aBejs) €1 T3ATT z€00va
wW 00Z:} (@-59be)g) zL 13ATT Le0ova
X 00Z'1 [(REESITREEL 0£00vQ
av 00Z:} [CREESITREER 6200va
EN 00z} (@-0 9beIs) 6 13N 8Z00vd
ov 00z} [CREEREREED 1zoova
w 00z} (@-08bB)s) £ 13ATT 9z00va
w 00z} (@-0 9be1s) 9 13N szoova
av 00z:L (@-29beIS) 6 13ATT ¥Z00va
ov 00Z'1 (@-0 8Beig) ¥ 13ATT £200vQ
ry 00Z:k | (@-O abeis) Nvid Mavdavd € 13A3T zz0ova
[ 0021 | (@-0@bEig) NV1d Mvdavd 2 13A3] 1z00va
o) 00z:L | (@-0 obeis) Nv1d HuvdyvO L 13A31 0zoova
a 0051 Nv1d 3LIS Looova
v SIN L33HS ¥3A00 0000va
UOISIADY aedss QweN }93ys "ON m>>D

1SI7 ONIMYYA va

|enuapisay 0] sjuswpedy padiAleg BuinsiX3 Jo UOISIBAUOD

oopleAA ‘1S Bulmoq Yinos B 1S Jusosal) Jud
O 1ONIO3Jdd - 9 49VLS - IOV

33



NOLIIIW

a 1ooovda

- . oo
rv nmar

5 =

ov D 0051k %0, TIddV
s = w5
NVd 31IS

P

/_M, oopalem ‘1§ Bulmoq yinog

® 1S JUB0S3ID JUD
O LONIO3¥d - 9 IOVIS - IOV

weloid
o BUpInG
1eauoprses o

Houy 3w omenio0j ey VD ZZ0SO @
HONY MIN MELMINNOGILIOW  ZMOE D
HOWY NP NVIdOLO30AVHIVE  SomieZ 8
HOwV NP GEAVOANNVIdELS  co0EE V.
o  Ag uosay seq  Asy

INZSNOD
INIWOTIAIA 40 INVAO 3HL ¥3LY SIS04UNA NOLLINULSNOD
404 G3u34d AUINNOISENS 34V SNIMYVAHD NIHM

G2UIND3 38 AW NOLLYANOLINGD ONY WHOJ OL SIONVHO YONIH

NOLLYNG S11 404
ONY SYOM ANY 40 1NV1S FHL O ¥ORid 19310¥d FH1 O1 TVINEdY.

OINVHOIN

LNHLIM L6Vd. 3

7 va ¥od 3nss| 7

ONIMOa HLNOS

133418

~

133¥LS  NVIHOVT -

. I
= = T L N P o M N 2 B .5 B V=) L 0 S L L B i R
7 = S A~ = - IR e
_ ) vl T
5 g 3 || Ly
= 2 JHOLS| SAFUOLS §I | SATMOLS 8L / SATHOLS ¥1 SAJHOLS 0}
1
h) & mgr
£ ; ;
L LL.. A 1) Ay rS v 7 - m “
B
N i SATMOLS 6 i N
i SAZMOLS 9 i ATHOLS 2|
f
—
b v.«_um_ \ AFHOLS 9
L | MR — oNITTINg
B | &t m SATHOLS L VIOAOL
£ - 2 o
z m o
) z i
i SATOLS 6 D 5 1
Al ® !
h)
H - A [YENT T 1
| _ sAOLS 8 saolss S
D) SAIHOLS LL | s A s MV
i I = 2252 I (| m
% 5 A —
H _@@f o = ]l
; 8 I ML=
M ONITING FOVLINIH ' TN, ) A2 RN 2 e L
NOLLVMLSININGY | . S 1 | [
1 i % \ 133418
; HEE - . 0 -
|- ) |
1l s SATOLS 9 _m>mm9.mw Y
B C 1 C 2u0LS| SAFOLS O}
Q SATIOLS 9 | h i i
@H ) |
o
SAFHOLS ¥ SAROLS ¥ 3
@ Wm m .;_-w & SAIOLS 7] m
e . K 3
, i —— e = o
0 , & e
1 | . . . B
1 ;
| ~ = L ,.
% 1k
S ” gl v Shivd WOV SER(T: R
[ o I e (]
NIdTna | e —
RESS ] 3 .
, m — = = ¢ X
T m P
SAIHOIS ¥ S =M = T = = Z
AR 11 ) R R I
e e
o U@ E G =
. SARMOLS § SATHOLS S g
SAFHOLS Vi a) (b g &
| ~] 2 i 2RI
1004 & o & Ny
v e oLl z
SATMOLS 9 SAIHOLS, G m 3 ASOLS 0 JEWOIT: AZHOL
(BN — MR — 280 B & W I =T =
=) f= - () (o) (o) [N - A=) N (N, P
R Tansran P === =2 f /
13388 SINvVd _ | 133u1s SHNVA w /

.WEW SA3HOIS 2

SAJYOLS 8

SAJHOLS §

§

/

N
o o (O o ok K B N /
7

/
j\

] SAZHOLS £

1l

- 1008 008

)

}

3| Jsazous a ' SAMOLS 0L

3 il g

= L - — T
) ) (=) L (oY (oY (o) () (=)

N A C N

133418 INJOSTHO

ONITING A3HOLS 0Z

ONIATING ATHOLS 82

—_—

=
T

ONIOTING A3HOL1S 91

/

/
/

34



NOLIYINW

O 0coovd

rv H3IN

ov D 00Z:1 $0-€0-10
(a-o obeyg)

NV1d XaVdavO L 13A31
NV1d 400714

m,_\w oopajem ‘1S Bumog yinog

B 1S Jus0saID JuD

O LONIDT¥d - 9 IOVLS - IOV

wsfoid

,,,,,,,,,,,

\‘Jr J\l
133005 1N3asae0
Tesi U
ey
HOBY ¥3W uoraIeAuC Joj [erciddy VO 8050 °
wo 4 vomey  ewa  rew

INZSNOD
INIWOTIAIA 40 INVAO 3HL ¥3LY SIS04UNA NOLLINULSNOD
404 (3UVe3Nd ALLNGNDISENS 34V SONIMVAD NIHM

G2UIND3 38 AW NOLLYANOLINGD ONY WHOJ OL SIONVHO YONIH

NOLLYNG S11 404
1ORid 19310¥d FH1 O TININEAY.
ANV ¥0 /% VORIOTT

LNHLIM L6Vd.

a

7 va ¥od 3nss| 7

R Ve I T e e

U
ANIT NOISIAIGENS WNLYALS
T % P
= = = = |

qum_ qum
i WNN N1 _

L ae Tea [ nd em ﬁmﬂ‘mﬁ\_‘ﬂﬁ iﬂiﬂ%\#

|
|
|
| | !
n NSNS WL | I

| |
@;@g@s&y;@ ® @;@s@

M A AN N N NN IS SIS NI N S




RV VN T T IR SR I S

NOLI¥IW

W

rv  leoova

o e S
rv H3IN
5 " i
ov D 00z ¥0-€0-10 If \ s Yousa
823180435 9185 ag il - [ [
-0 abe; i 34/ dOHS 25
(a-o 1S) ] _ 20¢ LN g5
NV1d MdVddvO 2 T3N3 =
NV1d 40014
T
/Mm oousjeM s Buimog yinog
918 JU92Sa1) JUD
9 LONIOF¥d - 9 IOVIS - 10V | |
“poloid R INING _
T T s - \ [ Em _
a— S , i |
o (b \ s} |
H hﬁ J:; \ NN _
E vone \ i
il m—— |
H - |
E 7 . ﬁ i
N\ \ _
T anais mesan \ U |
NI |
A
f i -
\ 902 :z: 1 1
(L z -
= _ -
!
- ‘M\
|
\_w
TVLI0 YIVLS YIONN W000 TVOIdAL \ N\ oo gy o -
N = LT :z* — 81z LINN 2T LINN
o wmemomained zws v NN ) OHOS | e _s
O ) ONAM!
wo A vosany  ama Ay uﬂuﬁ%mﬁ uwwm ¥000 AT . = |_ - - —- —-—
QAL | i . i
INISNOD
IN3Wd013A30 40 LNVHO 3HL ¥314V S3S0dHNd NOLLONAELENOD
YO GRIVAIUd ALININOISENS TV SONIMVASA NIHM
3¥IND3Y 38 AVIN NOLLVENDIANCD NV W¥O04 OL SIDNVHD HONIW
ouvnsuio:

7 va ¥04 anssi |




NOLIY¥INW

rvy  ceoova

o o N
rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag

(a-0 ebeyg)
NV1d MHVdHVO € 13A31
NY1d ¥0O0T4

P
/Mm oopsjem Js Buimog yinog
918 JU92Sa1) JUD

O LONIO3Hd - 9 ADVLS - 1OV

peloid

uuuuuuuuu

g, \\\N __

wwwwwwwwwwwwww

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddy va  ZZ0S0 1Y

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM
G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |

Z1ON

NISNCD

JONVQRCO0Y N 28 CL gy=A

Y61 031¥0 $2C00-1CN

H

2 3d0dd WO 31 NIVWOA 3118Nd

00z 120

100

A

0

13341S ONITMOAd HLNOS

\‘

7e g

Vi

7 9 g f

@

Til B

|
—_—— e —

X :z:
o cxﬁv

N D;

EL

il :::

¥0¢ LINN ﬁ\zL

71 3vEd0 W
-7 SHVIB R SN
Z VIONE b

ENNRIEHE D . _ ]
ﬁﬁ g0l | 4pr | g0l

:%9\,[_ _ . -

iwos 08

61¢ LINQ - 144 :
o_amﬁ eamg/

@_________




NOLI¥IW

-

o9v g2oova
o o e
rv H3IN
w5 i
ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)
NV1d ¥ 13A31
NV1d 40014
P
/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)
O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV
peloid
iy {‘ﬂw
,
\

oL

J—
o wan o o aiond 0080 OV
wo  fa oy asa s
INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM
G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

“NOILYANG SLI 04

05:1 38
SYUIVLS JO INOYJ NI NOILOIS TvOIdAL
[ 000 2H
T T A
/110788
— |nabo!
Ninn] o
Jooal 2
N —
S |
s
A
0v'8¢ 1
[

SYIVIS d3ANN NOILI3S TVOIdAL

frrrrrm%a ZWJL v ey

r_l_|_ M
SOVAL SL2 HLth

HOV3 WiY'6L10 SIS LI ,IA

08¢

050¢

0G:1 IWIS

NV1d TVOIdAL

va ¥04 anssi |

ANIOf|NOILONMYLSNOD

mz_ﬁ NOISIAIOBNS Es_aﬁﬂ_

SEmnEes:

>

e

v
ANOD IVE

i

NI NOISINIGENS ANLYAL

g

®

,|
S |
1
®

;
[

SN N N N7 N N e N e e e e S

§
ot-—i——



NOLI¥INW

n_< veoova

rv H3IN

ov o 00z:} $0-€0-10
(@-0 ebelg)

NVd S 13ATT

NV1d 400714

m_ﬁw oopsiepm g Buimog yinog

9 1S JU90SAID JUY
O LONIO3Hd - 9 39VLS - IOV

pafoid

——— - [
133415 S¥NvQ

@

LF_

azns

P TTERTEITET)

Ty BupIng

s o
HOWY W vosenios o)AV VO ZZ00S0 QY
wo A8 uorsiney eea ey

INISNOD
ANIWAOTIASQ 40 LNVYO SHL UALIY S3S0duNd NOLLOMULSNOD
204 (34VdTd ATLNINDISANS AV SONIMVRIO NHM

‘G3UIND3Y 38 AVW NOLLVANDIENGD GNV WO 0L SIONVHO NONIW

OV SHHOM ANY 40 LAVLS 3HL OL HOI¥d LO3Qkd.

va ¥04 aNssI |

_k_z: a8 e
1 $0G LINN
Ik ﬂz,__a\sz;a

VIO fviaan

TDEW
- ~ 15 LIND _
ING/ONA

|
ILNOD

1]

ANODTYE

T
7‘,, _
—
|
i
:
=
|

ANIOF

ANODTVE

~ " e

a

NOOTVE

A O

T’*’*’if’*’f
E—

I .
|
|

/)
N ,WW_&A
@ T N AT | g 2
. v LINN
_ Lo l._. . _ 7
CTCa
I s | O B T
. 7 oove :m% aw,mpf\ - _Ir&s.ﬁ i 4
© i 1
= | @ _ ININIG/39NN0T _ - Laﬂ owng/von | ) 4 5
_ L = | !
5 N - = S5 LN
\\\\\ —;
—. 4

1NN an iy
B |

mE—_

T
ES:M o ANODTVE |
T

“ATNO SLINN ¥04
3NN zo_ms%m ANLYYIS




NOLIYINW ...

2 iomoL Lol

vV Geoova

“oN BurReIa BN aor

rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d 9 13ATT

NV1d 40014

P

/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)

O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV

peloid

H § ﬂ E

..............

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddy va  ZZ0S0 WY

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |

06:1 JW0S

SNOILO3S YIVLS TYNYILNI TWOIdAL

HYLS d3aNN
/,/m, W_Ou,./m‘_ 0 97 VA

YIONN 3HOLS.
01 #0000

A

)

RN

T T

:

S

T

T T

.,Tza\czs_ 1

NN 038

ags
|

i

&) =

1

LI

L

(X

|
Azzéuzs:

i
1€09 LIND

| ANOOVE

T

a8 |

E  own/onng
]

.}rﬂ% =
it )

ANOTTVE] k’mﬂ'

)

T
|

.@_zo SLINN 404
NN NOISWAENS WNLVALS T

_‘\‘\‘ i

I
i

ANIOT TOMLNOD
- 1
|

Lzo SLINN 404

| 3N NOSIGES AILYVALS |

®©  © o



NOLI¥IW .,

2 somoL Lol

vV  9200vd

ON B T

rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d £ 13A31

NV1d 40014

P

/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)

O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV

peloid

- L —

LB

133als 1A30s38

Ko Buping

Teuoprsor 0
HouY wan Lomenioy ARty YO 720050 WY
w fa re P——

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥od anssl 7

]
m il

=)

Az,za\ozsj m
oI
B0L LINN

B\ moowe
v

£l
=

10 LINN

=

‘ANOQWVE F‘m'fv I
=

hoow,

————— e —

—_

TTIM @A TN s

Tl WMMﬂ.T.I.T.I.I_

INn a38 g 7_
i

IINOD

3

ANIOr

o]
INN 038
L1 1NN

% /,. -
_L0OE i |
oo SV e ;
A 10T N0 2
SIRETE o
HH <ru N 25y 3
i v v I 7
- L Yaiil




NOLIYIW

oV /zoova

- L
rv H3IN

RI5] umeiq

ov o 00z:} $0-€0-10
s ws MRS5S L
(@-0 ebelg)

NVd 8 13A3IT

NV1d 400714

oweN Bumeiq

m_ﬁw oopejem 1S Bulimog ynog
1S JUsDsal) Ju)

O LONIOZ¥d - 9 39VLS - 1OV

peloid

n\i .

133815 1839630

Ty BupIng

s o
HOWY W vosenios o) AV VO ZZ00S0 OV
wo A8 uorsiney eea ey

INISNOD
ANIWAOTIASQ 40 LNVYO SHL UALIY S3S0duNd NOLLOMULSNOD
204 (34VdTd ATLNINDISANS AV SONIMVRIO NHM

‘G3UIND3Y 38 AVW NOLLVANDIENGD GNV WO 0L SIONVHO NONIW

OV SHHOM ANY 40 LAVLS 3HL OL HOI¥d LO3Qkd.

va ¥04 aNssI |

INNIG/ONIT
INN 038 |

T
7 m
R . >a, S
1 8 1
5 . 5\ 2
g ICE § n H vy
1AB801 7 =
| — =
| foma | 1 __ '
o ==
! % 1 i
m g T T TS
| W_ g PR L
T N ANoovE
=

1
— H4-—-+—-
il I

[

-
|
-
.

ANOOWYE

1
|

|
e
|
T
ANBOTVE

&

|
ANOJVER] anvoovg |

I
[ E

1~ Roouf~ T
. 4 EL

| |

,
oo ved

== —
4] 7

3
|

£

o0 wangz INIATT

e N

=

=
|

1 = 1 = = 1 1 - 1 1
'
7 e | | | | _
‘MwﬁL‘ ——— _ S T
| @8 a8 | {38 | a3 | 8
SSIVAY 1SSV SSIVA SSIVA “SSIVH ' !
1INN Q38 ¢ INN 038 ¢ LINN (g ¢ LINDOJE & 1IND Qi ¢ |
£08 1NN V08| GO8 4N 908NN B0R4INN
' [
| ]
SNy V5N _ | _

I _:_‘; . ' ‘zii JRRN S Bl TEO_LE{_NOQ I
oAz |

t;_*_*_*_?_*_ﬂl_
|

O



NOLI¥INW ...

2 iomoL Lol

v 8coova

o o N
rv H3IN
w5 i
ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d 6 T3ATT —
NV1d 40014 ; i
)
‘owsN Bumeia | g ” = oo

/$m oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)
O LONIOT¥d - 9 ADVLS - 1OV
peloid

T S m,

=+

ANIOr

133815 1A3053%0

e TupIg
oy \,_
ANOOVE
g
<]
E
I . = 7D, & . i
1IN 038 1
NATI/ONINIG i $
R § ANDOWVA ¢ ANOTVE i N0V § ANOOVE
R -H &) X -
o, F] X I .
e, .
/] [se 2] ONAT Al own
TP o) S 7 .wmazi
Houy ¥aw vosnG 0y OV VD 2050 W INN QI 21 INVTHB 7 1
720L_IIND £201 1IN0
w0 Ag o E Y - L £201 IND
B
2
NISNOD —— 2
ANIWAOTZAIQ 40 INVMO 3HL HaLV SISOdMNd NOLLINMLSNOD 8 | 0906 NOLLYZRINSS 2
404 GVdIUd ALLNINDISENS TV SONIMVA NIHM ¥04 ON3d TIVM o H AR
3HIND3Y 38 AVI NOLLVENDINOD ONY WHO4 0L SIONVHD HONIW
ES

61 s8]

7 va ¥04 anssi |




NOLIYINW ...

2 iomoL Lol

av e6coova

o o N
rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d 0L T3ATT

NV1d 40014

P

/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)

O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV

peloid

...........

N

.

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddyva  ZZ0S0  a¥

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |

VdS
N38

HO0Y LNV 1d

uzcﬁ HOH 005
I

=

2Edl

azgz\cz_za

AH%D(

ININIG/3ONNOT

ANTW@E o
INAT/ININIG

1NN 048 ¢
02QL,TINN




NOLI¥INW ...

2 iomoL Lol

X 0goova

o o N
rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag

(a-0 ebeyg)
NVd L1 713ATT
NY1d ¥0O0T4

oweN Bueia

/$m oopsjem Js Buimog yinog

8 1§ U981 JU
O 1ONIO3Hd - 9 39VLS - IOV

poloid

[

o]
__Jl.L

L|_|Hr_

azus

133u1s Sanve

!

uuuuuuuuuuuu

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddy va  ZZ0S0 X

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |

TROTVE,

. L

Ve

AN

IND (98 L
uzqa\uzfa

N3

D

e Fl\

-

ANV

Bl

L
|

o 1jn_

LINOD

B

ANIOr




Vv lLeoova

UoRIARY "ON BumeIq "ON qor
v I
5 T
ov @ 00z:1 $0-€0-10
s = WG
(@-0 ebeyg)
NV1d ¢l T3N3
NV1d 400714
owen Bumeig
\H%w oopajeM 48 Bulimog winos
2 1S Jusosal) JuD
O LONIO3Yd - 9 IOVLS - 10V
weloid
s
RNty .

v

13341S 3NI1X30 HINOS

LANOOTV

uuuuuuuuuuuuuu

| AROTTVE |

Qz_z_n_
1 em_ |

uepsar o
Howw uan [ i R 4
wo  fa omany  owg aoy

* va ¥od anssi |




NOLI¥INW ...

2 iomoL Lol

Z ceoova

o o N
rv H3IN

w5 i

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d €1 T3ATT

NV1d 40014

P

/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)

O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV

peloid

...........

..............

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddyva  ZZ0S0  Z

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |

[=
15
=3
2
g

woows |

SSIVA QFD [}

8121 LINn [ VIR

P
ISMOHINAd

9NN | |

, [ 1
INOMNId e ~ TR mm&zzwm_. 7
bz




NOLIY¥INW

M geoovda

o o N
rv H3IN
w5 i
ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10
823180435 81895 ag
(@-0 ebeyg)
NV1d v1L 13A3T
NV1d 40014
P
/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog
1S JU90saID JU)
O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV
peloid

.

1

...........

\\\\\\\\\I

..............

t\\

\

o GupInG
euoprsas o

HouY wan omeniocyeraddy va  ZZ0SO M

wo e uorsinoy aeq Aoy

INISNOD

ANIWAOTEAQ 40 LNVHD 3HL 3LV S3S0d¥Nd NOLLOMULENOD
404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM

G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

QLT'ALd dNOMO NOLREEW 40 NGSNCO
LOHLIM 1V ]

an

7 va ¥04 anssi |

-ms -G
8ivl LN @

()

s

w0\ 4HS
VIQH

LIND 028 |
uz_ﬁz\ozzs 183

Y02 id




1017 1926219+ 4

8007 1026 7L+ :1.

0002 AoupAS 1S 10X 829
J0MOL OO L1 for®)

W

O veoova

rv H3IN

ovo 00z:} ¥0-€0-10

(@-0 ebeyg)

NV1d S1 13ATT

NV1d 40014

/Mm oopsjeM IS Bulmog ynog

1S JU90saID JU)

O LONIO3YHd - 9 3OV1S - IOV

P s owe
. _H

2 [

|

-

o GupInG
euoprsas o
ouY w3 womenuoo oy erddy ¥O 229050
s re aeq Aoy

404 UVdTid ALLNINDISEANS TV SONIMVA NIHM
G3INO3 38 AVW NOLLVHNOIINGD GNY WHO4 OL SIONVHO HONIW

7 va ¥04 anssi |




Attachment B2

Selected Drawings

50




51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Confirmation of Minutes
	3 Development Application: 807 South Dowling Street, Waterloo - D/2021/1512
	Attachment A - Recommended Conditions of Consent
	Attachment B1 - Selected Drawings
	Attachment B2 - Selected Drawings
	Attachment B1 Cover.pdf
	B2 small.pdf
	B3 small.pdf
	B4 small.pdf





